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(Oct. 1990) 

United States Department of the Intermix 
National Park Service 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
REGISTRATION FORM 

OMB No. 1024-0018 

_^fCffVfD 22E0 

1. NAME OF PROPERTY 

HISTORIC NAME: Old West Austin Historic District 
OTHER NAMES/SITE NUMBER: N/A 

2. LOCATION 

STREET & NUMBER: Roughly bounded by W. 13th, Lamar Blvd., W. 35th, & Mo-Pac Expy. 
CITY OR TOWN: Austin 
STATE: Texas CODE: TX 

VICINITY: N / A 

COUNTY: Travis CODE: 453 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION: N/A 

ZIP CODE: 78703 

3, STATE/FEDERAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION 

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, I hereby certify that this x. 
nomination 

_ request for determination of ehgibihty meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of 
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property 
meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. I recommend that this property be considered significant nationally 
statewide x locally. 
( See conUjiii^ipi^heet for a^^tlti/ifial comments.) 

Signature of certifying official 

State Historic Preservation Officer. Texas Historical Commission 
State or Federal agency and bureau 

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. 
( See continuation sheet for additional comments.) 

Date 

Signature of commenting or other official Date 

State or Federal agency and bureau 

4. NATIONAL PARK SERVICE CERTIFICATION 

1, hereh^certify that this property is: 

entered in the National Register 
_ See continuation sheet, 

determined eligible for the National Register 
_ See continuation sheet, 

determined not eligible for the National Register 

Date of Action 

SEP 1 2 2003 

removed from the National Register 

other (explain): 
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5. CLASSIFICATION 

OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTY: Private; public-local 

CATEGORY OF PROPERTY: District 

NUMBER OF RESOURCES WITHIN PROPERTY: 

CONTRIBUTING NONCONTRIBUTING 

1,568 951 BUILDINGS 

1 0 SITES 

4 0 STRUCTURES 

1 0 OBJECTS 

1,574 951 TOTAL 

NUMBER OF CONTRIBUTING RESOURCES PREVIOUSLY LISTED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER: 5 (Judge Robert 
Lynn Batts House, Goldie Horton-Porter House, Jacques and Maggie Keith House, Chester and Lorine Nagel 
House, Woodlawn) 

NAME OF RELATED MULTIPLE PROPERTY LISTING: N / A 

6. FUNCTION OR USE 

HISTORIC FUNCTIONS: DOMESTIC: Single dwelling. Secondary structure, Multiple dwelling 
LANDSCAPE: Park 
TRANSPORTATION: Road-related 

CURRENT FUNCTIONS: DOMESTIC: Single dwelling. Secondary structure. Multiple dwelling 
LANDSCAPE: Park 
TRANSPORTATION: Road-related 

7. DESCRIPTION 

ARCHITECTURAL CLASSIFICATION: 

LATE 19TH AND 20TH CENTURY REVIVALS: Colonial; Classical; Italian Renaissance; Tudor; 
Mission/Spanish Colonial Revivals 

LATE 19TH AND EARLY 20TH CENTURY AMERICAN MOVEMENTS: Prairie School, 
Bungalow/ Craftsman 

MODERN MOVEMENT: Modeme, International Style, Ranch Style 

MATERIALS: FOUNDATION: BRICK; WOOD; STONE; CONCRETE 
WALLS: WOOD (weatherboard, board and batten, drop-siding); BRICK; STONE; 

STUCCO; SHEET METAL 
ROOF: WOOD (shingles); ASPHALT; CLAY TILE; SHEET METAL 
OTHER: CONCRETE; GLASS 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION: see Continuation Sheets 7-5 to 7-71 
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Description 

The Old West Austin Historic District covers approximately 106 blocks of residential development and park land 
distributed across a plateau west of Austin's central business district. The area is comprised of three major suburbs, Enfield, 
Pemberton Heights, and Bryker Woods and was all originally part of the George W. Spear League. When the league was divided, 
the Pease family's Woodlawn plantation and farmland John Woods Harris owned encompassed the greater portion of the parceling. 
Although a few houses were built before the turn of the century, suburban development began in the southern portion of the area in 
the 1920s and expanded northward through the 1950s. Architect-designed dwellings coexist with more modest vernacular dwellings 
and the collection includes period revival residences, bungalows, cottages, and apartments. Relieving the basic rectilinear grid are 
several streets that conform to Shoal Creek basin's irregular topography and others that gently descend into Pease Park, which 
forms the historic district's eastern boundary. The resultant grouping of nineteenth- and twentieth-century resources includes 2,525 
dwellings, garages, and other properties that retain integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and 
association, which remain recognizable to the historic district's period of significance. 

Old West Austin's Automobile Suburbs 

The historic district includes several features that refer to its nineteenth-century history. Woodlawn plantation, with its 
Greek Revival dwelling built in 1853 (see Photograph 1) and adjoining acreage provided much of the land for what would become 
the historic district. Nineteenth-century development included establishment of the International and Great Northern Railroad, 
which defines the historic district's western boundary, and the founding of Pease Park, donated to the city by the Pease family, 
owners of Woodlawn, which defines the historic district's eastern boundary. Other nineteenth-century development included a few 
dwellings on the historic district's north side. 

Twentieth-century suburban development, however, dominates the historic district. A significant portion of the Old West 
Austin Historic District occupies a limestone shelf west of the city. The scenic view of downtown Austin and the University of 
Texas campus is a distinctive feature of many dwellings built along the area's eastern edge. The suburbs of Enfield, Pemberton 
Heights, and Bryker Woods form the nucleus of suburban development. 

The oldest and southernmost suburb in the historic district is Enfield. Its rough boundaries are Windsor Road on the north. 
Pease Park on the east, 13th Street on the south, and the Mo-Pac Expressway on the west. The suburb encompasses several 
additions platted between 1914 and 1948. Two later additions were platted on the west side of the historic district after the period of 
significance under consideration. The plan for Enfield is largely intact, incorporating several small island parks along curvilinear 
streets at the edge of Pease Park. Lot sizes and shapes are irregular. Topography dictates the route of the main east-west 
thoroughfares, Enfield and Niles Roads. Street widths vary considerably within the suburb. Most dwellings have a thirty-foot 
setback from the street. Fewer park lands were platted in the 1930s subdivisions than in earlier additions. Streets tended to be 
rectilinear, and, although lots continued to vary in size, they seldom were irregularly shaped. The right angles of rectangular lots, 
of any size, meant more lots could be platted and sold. Restrictions in some of these later subdivisions required only twenty-five-
foot setbacks for dwellings and a one-story house could cost a minimum of $2,000. 

Due north of Enfield is the suburb of Pemberton Heights, roughly bounded by Westover Road on the north, Shoal Creek 
on the east, Windsor Road and 24th Street on the south, and the Mo-Pac Expressway on the west. Pemberton Heights encompasses 
several additions platted between 1927 and 1947. The earliest-developed portion of the suburb has curvilinear streets, small island 
parks, and varied lot sizes and shapes. Later additions are more rectilinear in plan with smaller, relatively uniform rectangular lots. 
These later additions also have asphalt-surfaced driveways. Setback requirements in Pemberton Heights vary from thirty to forty 
feet. Southern access to Pemberton Heights is from Windsor Road, which rambles through Enfield, or the 1928 bridge spanning 
Shoal Creek at 24th Street. The bridge was widened in 1939. Two other bridges span Shoal Creek along Shoal Creek Drive within 
the confines of Pease Park. The southernmost of these two bridges was rebuilt of reinforced concrete in 1935; the northernmost 
bridge was rebuilt in 1934. A fourth bridge had been at 29th Street for years, providing access to the north side of the historic 
district. The early bridge was replaced with a reinforced concrete structure in 1926, repaired in 1933, and replaced again in 1938. 

Bryker Woods, the northernmost suburb in the historic district, is roughly bounded by 35th Street on the north. Shoal 
Creek on the east, Westover Road on the south, and the Mo-Pac Expressway on the west. The suburb encompasses several parcels 
of land that were platted between 1886 and 1951. Bryker Woods was intensively developed between 1936 and 1940 with 
subdivisions that followed mostly rectilinear streets with regularly-sized and shaped lots. The last two plats of 1940, however. 
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brought substantial physical changes to the largely rectilinear suburb by introducing two very long, oval-shaped blocks. Where 
there would have been sharp right angles, small triangular-shaped island parks guided traffic. Another slightly larger park is at the 
north end instead of residential lots. Later additions, Belmont 1 and 2, were platted in the 1950s, but construction in these areas 
largely postdates the period of significance under consideration. Setbacks are a uniform twenty-five feet from the street throughout 
most of Bryker Woods. 

Landscape features are found throughout the historic district. Lush landscaping includes curbside live oaks, elms, and 
several varieties of flowering trees and shrubs. Islands and small parks often have a substantial live oak growing within their 
perimeter (see Photograph 2). Residential yards have groomed lawns and many have complimentary, though not necessarily historic 
plantings of flower beds, shrubs, and potted plants. Numerous older trees are on many of the properties. 

Other landscape features include the street system. Some portions of the system are rectilinear and others are curvilinear. 
Alleys were unnecessary in automobile suburbs, thus access to garages and outbuildings is by way of the main streets. Except in a 
few early instances, primarily near Pease Park, stone curbing or retaining walls, concrete curbs, gutters, and storm drains are 
standard. A decorative feature on many corner curbs in Pemberton Heights is inlaid ceramic tile identifying street names. Materials 
for driveways vary broadly from street to street. Concrete driveways dominate, but numerous examples of asphalt or gravel beds 
also exist. The dominant gateway in the historic district is at the Parkway Road entrance to Pease Park (see Photograph 3). 

Pease Park defines the eastern boundary of the historic district and serves as its most significant landscape feature. The 
initial twenty-three-acre park grew to encompass just more than forty-two acres. Its landscape design elements are minimal, 
emphasizing natural features and passive use of much of the park's grounds. Trails along the creek and leading away from it take 
advantage of the bluffs, trees, and waterway. The landscape design includes picnic and playgrounds. These active areas are close to 
Lamar Boulevard on the eastern rim of the park, and the passive areas are along and west of the creek. 

Buildings in Old West Austin's Suburbs 

As a result of planned development and deed restrictions, single-family residences and related outbuildings comprise the 
bulk of the historic district's building stock. Approximately 1,423 of the buildings are dwellings. Of the dwellings, 922 properties 
follow an asymmetrical plan, 286 follow a typical bungalow form, 137 follow a rectangular form, fifty-three follow a multiple-
family plan, and eighteen follow a symmetrical plan. Table 1 shows the distribution of plan types by stylistic classification. 




